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Overview 

• Commonly Alleged Violations 

• Types of Potential Liability for Regulatory 
Violations   

• Voluntary Disclosure Programs 



Commonly Alleged Violations 

• 43.13, Failure to Correctly Perform 
Maintenance 

• 43.15, Failure to Correctly Perform Inspections 

• 43.9 & 43.11, Improper Maintenance Entries 

• 43.12, Falsification 



FAR § 43.13 

• Two requirements: 

– Use the correct documentation, methods, and 
tools 

– Return the aircraft “to its original or properly 
altered condition” 



What are the Correct Documents, 
Methods…etc. 

• Approved Data v. Acceptable Data 

– Examples of Approved Data 

• Manufacturer’s Manuals 

• Airworthiness Directives 

• Supplemental Type Certificates 

– Examples of Acceptable Data 

• AC 43.13-1B/2B 



When is Acceptable Data Okay? 
• AC 43.13-1B/2B may be used directly as approved 

data (for minor repairs only) when: 

– Aircraft is nonpressurized and ≤ 12,500lb (2B - Alterations); 

– Aircraft is nonpressurized and manufacturer’s instructions 
do not exist for the repair (1B - Repairs); 

– The Data is appropriate to the product being repaired; 

– The Data is directly applicable to the repair being made; 
and 

– The Data is not contrary to manufacturer’s data. 



Welded Sleeve v. Welded Patch 
Repair 

• 121 Operator performed a welded sleeve repair on 
an engine mount following AC 43.13 

• Manufacturer’s Structural Repair Manual called for a 
welded patch repair only 

• On appeal, the ALJ held that it was a violation of FAR 
§ 43.13, and assessed a $5,000 civil penalty 



Apprentice Mechanics 
• Landing gear maintenance performed by non-

certificated mechanic 

• In flight the landing gear could not be 
extended = forced gear up landing 

• Apprentice did not have manuals, make 
maintenance entries, or test the landing gear 

• Non-Part 145 Repair Station employer fined 
$4,750 

 



FAR § 43.15 In General 

• Ensure the aircraft “meets all applicable 
airworthiness requirements” 

– Airworthiness 

• Complies with its Type Design or approved altered 
condition, and 

• Is in a condition for safe flight 

 



Returning Aircraft to Service After 
Inspections 

• What are you certifying? 

– The aircraft was airworthy at the time of 
inspection 

• No discrepancies which make the aircraft non-
airworthy 

• Compliance with ADs 

• Reasonable assurance that previous repairs were 
correct 

 



Aircraft Becoming Unairworthy 
soon after an Inspection  

• Inspectors buy the past when they certify 
airworthiness 

• However, if the aircraft is found to be 
unairworthy soon after an inspection the FAA 
may doubt whether the aircraft was airworthy 
at the time of the inspection 

 



Amazingly Fast Corrosion 

• Board didn’t believe the aircraft was airworthy 
at the time of inspection 

– Severe corrosion found 2 months after the 
inspection 

• Board believed the aircraft was airworthy at 
the time of inspection 

– Severe corrosion found 4 months after the 
inspection 

 



The FAA will not believe the 
aircraft was airworthy when… 

• The annual was completed at night, on the 
ramp 

• When they find 245 discrepancies soon 
thereafter 

• The inspector signs off an inspection 
conducted by another individual 

 



Trust, but Verify 
• Fuel System Inspection required by AD 

• Owner assures mechanic that tanks had recently 
been inspected and resealed, Mechanic trusts Owner 
and only inspects sealant 

• ALJ ruled that Mechanic could not rely on the 
previous maintenance because 
– The AD had not been published at the time the previous 

maintenance was performed, and  

– The Owner had not been present during this previous 
maintenance to witness the work actually performed 
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Basic Description Requirements 
• Inspections 

– Use the § 43.11 language 

– Name the Inspection and give a brief description of 
its extent 

– List Discrepancies 

• Maintenance 

– Description of the work performed, or 

– A reference to approved data 
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How Detailed should the 
Descriptions Be? 

• More Detailed Description 
– Pro: Everyone knows exactly what you did 

– Con: Everyone knows exactly what you did 

• Less Detailed Description 
– Pro: Some question about exactly what you did 

– Con: Some question about exactly what you did 
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The Bottom Line 

• Regardless of what type of entry you make you 
will most likely be called if there is an 
accident/incident, especially if it involves any 
system, component…etc. you worked on or 
around 

– Scribbling your name and/or certificate number will 
not change this 
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Follow Approved Data 

• Air conditioning pack louvers were “loose.”  
• Mechanic attempted to fix the problem and 

returned the aircraft to service by making the 
following entry in the aircraft’s maintenance 
log: “Resecured BDT louver rivets per 
*Bombardier’s Canadair CL600-2B19 Structural 
Repair Manual (“SRM”)+ 51-00-00, 51-42-06.” 
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Approved Data 
• Next landing, the flight crew again noted that 

the louvers were loose.  
• Mechanic did not have knowledge of the SRM 

provisions he cited. In fact, he did not, as 
specified in the SRM, “use only a rivet-
squeezer to install rivets in composite 
materials,” but, rather, he used a pneumatic 
rivet gun.  
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Approved Data 

• 30 Day Suspension 

• Could have been Revocation 
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FAR § 43.12 – Falsification 
& Fraud 

• There is never an excuse, and it always results in 
revocation 

• Criminalization 

– Fraud and False Statements Act (18 U.S.C. § 1001) 

• Criminalizes falsification and fraudulent statements 

• No exception for “exculpatory no’s” 

• Up to five years imprisonment 



22 

Fraudulent Actions 

• Elements of Intentional Falsification 

– False Statement 

– Of a Material Fact 

– Made With Knowledge 
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Fraudulent Actions 

• Mechanic “performed” aircraft maintenance 
and an annual inspection as part of pre-buy 

• Numerous defects found a few days after 
inspection = FAA determination that 
inspection was not performed 

• Revoked 
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Follow-On Fraud 

• "C" check at Alaska Airlines 

• Discrepancy logged by mechanic who then 
goes off duty 

• Supervisor did not investigate to determine if 
discrepancy was addressed during engine 
work done as part of C check 
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Follow-On Fraud 

• From review of paperwork completed for C 
check, Supervisor determined discrepancy 
should have been addressed 

• Logbook did not reflect this judgment call, but 
indicated maintenance work done to correct 
discrepancy 
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Follow-On Fraud 

• Specifically, Supervisor wrote: “trim 
accomplished per task card, ops check good.” 

• The NTSB did not allow any evidence as to the 
actual airworthiness of the aircraft 
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Follow On Fraud 

• NTSB stated that condition of the aircraft was 
not relevant as to whether the Supervisor had 
made a knowingly false statement 

• What happened to “Material” element of the 
charge??  



Liability for Violations 
• Who is liable? 

– The individual who performed the maintenance 

– The individual who inspected it and/or returned the 
aircraft to service 

– Their employer, even if it is not a Part 145 repair station 

• Potential Liability: 
– Certificate Action 

– Civil Penalties 

– Civil Litigation 

– Criminal Penalties 



Criminalization 
• US Approach 

– 1996 ValueJet Flight 592 
• Federal and state criminal indictments of SabreTech and 

employees – SabreTech convicted on reckless mishandling charge, 
settlement reached on state charges 

– 2008 – 1st pilot jailed for aircraft accident 
• Passenger killed 

• Plead guilty to negligent operation of a motor vehicle and 
disorderly conduct 

• 30 days jail, house arrest, fines, court costs, two years probation 
from flying, not allowed to consume alcohol even though alcohol 
didn’t play a part in accident 



FAA Voluntary Disclosure Programs 

• Aviation Safety Reporting Program AC 00-46D 

• Voluntary Disclosure Program AC 00-58A 

• Aviation Safety Action Program AC 120-66B 

 



NASA ASRP 

• “designed to encourage the identification and 
reporting of deficiencies and discrepancies in 
the system” 

• Receipt, processing, and analysis of raw data 
conducted by NASA, not the FAA 

• NASA removes identifying information and 
forwards safety data to FAA 



NASA ASRP 
• FAA Enforcement Policy – No civil penalty or 

certificate suspension if: 

– violation was inadvertent and not deliberate 

– violation did not involve a criminal offense, 
accident, or disclose a lack of qualification or 
competency 

– no violation of regulations within the last 5 years 

– report filed within 10 days of violation 

 



NASA ASRP 

• “Catches” 

– Reports regarding accidents or criminal offenses 
are forwarded to FAA without deidentification 

– Be careful with identification strip 

– Be careful in drafting description 

– Each person should file a report 

 



NASA ASRP 

• Forms available at http://asrs.arc.nasa.gov/ 

– File via certified mail, or electronically 

– Specific form for maintenance personnel 

 



Voluntary Disclosure Program 
• Applies to PAH, 121, 135, 145 and 91K 

Maintenance Issues (Does Not Cover Part 91 
Flight Departments) 

• IF ACCEPTED: Results in Letter of Correction to 
the Company Rather Than Civil Penalty 

• Tracked By Wyvern and Argus 



Voluntary Disclosure 
General Requirements -  

(1) The certificate holder has notified the FAA of the 
apparent violation immediately after detecting it and 
before the agency has learned of it by other means. 

(2) The apparent violation was inadvertent. 

(3) The apparent violation does not indicate a lack, 
or reasonable question, of qualification of the 
certificate holder. 

 



Voluntary Disclosure 

(4) Immediate action, satisfactory to the FAA, 
was taken upon discovery to terminate the 
conduct that resulted in the apparent 
violation. 

 



Voluntary Disclosure 

(5) The certificate holder has developed or is 
developing a comprehensive fix and schedule 
of implementation satisfactory to the FAA. The 
comprehensive fix includes a follow-up self-
audit to ensure that the action taken corrects 
the noncompliance. This self-audit is in 
addition to any audits conducted by the FAA. 

 



Voluntary Disclosure 

• Ordinarily, the FAA will not forego legal 
enforcement action if the certificate holder 
informs the FAA of the apparent violation 
during, or in anticipation of, an FAA 
investigation/inspection or in association with 
an accident or incident. 

 



When Are Individuals Protected? 
(1) Violation involves a Deficiency of the Company’s 

practices or procedures; 

(2) Employee, while acting on behalf of the 
Company, inadvertently violates the FAA's 
regulations as a direct result of the Deficiency (The 
voluntary disclosure policy does not apply to the 
airman or other agent when his/her apparent 
violation is the result of actions unrelated to the 
employing entity's deficiency); 



When Are Individuals Protected? 

(3) The Employee immediately reports the 
violation to the Company; and 

(4) The Company immediately notifies the FAA 
of both the Employee’s apparent violation and 
the apparent deficiency in Company practice 
or procedures. 

 



Aviation Safety Action Programs 

• ASAPs are intended for air carriers that 
operate under Part 121. They are also 
intended for major domestic repair stations 
certificated under Part 145. ASAPs are entered 
into voluntarily by the FAA, a certificate 
holder, and if appropriate, other parties. 



Aviation Safety Action Programs 

• Program developed by certificate holder 

– Generally developed for specific groups (i.e. 
mechanics) 

• FAA accepts the program 



Aviation Safety Action Programs 
• Criteria for Acceptance of Reports 

– Report submitted in timely manner 

• Defined in MOU, or 

• Within 24 hours  of when the employee knew or should 
have known of the apparent violation 

– Alleged violation must be inadvertent 

– No criminal activity, substance abuse, controlled 
substances, alcohol, or intentional falsification 



Aviation Safety Action Programs 
• FAA Enforcement Policy - If report accepted 

under ASAP jurisdiction with CHDO 
• Non Sole Source reports with sufficient evidence to 

support violation will be closed with administrative 
action 

• Sole Source reports closed with no action 

• Reports that demonstrate or raise question of lack of 
qualification will be addressed with ERC recommended 
corrective action 



Aviation Safety Action Programs 

• Reports not accepted under ASAP are referred 
to FAA for possible enforcement action 



Voluntary Disclosure Programs 

• ASRP and Voluntary Disclosure can be used 
without prior coordination 

• ASAP requires prior plan develop and 
acceptance by the FAA in advance 

• All programs demonstrate that safety culture 
and reporting are key! 



Voluntary Reporting Concerns 
• Legal Concerns Should Promote Safety 

Programs, Not Discourage Them 

• What Are the Legal Concerns? 

– Fear of Records 

• Fear of Use in the Courts 

• Fear of Use in the Press 

• Fear of Use in FAA Enforcement 

• Fear of Use Within a Company 

 



Protection for Voluntary Reports 
• Protection of ASRS (NASA Forms) under 91.25 and 

Confidentiality Agreements 

• Protection of ASAP and VDRP under Part 193 

• Regulations likely won’t prevent use in litigation, BUT use of 
program may ultimately help 
– Comair – ASAP reports admitted as evidence, Court relied on them to 

find no clear and convincing evidence of gross negligence by 
management, so punitive damage award was reversed.  

• FSIMS specifically states that participation “can be indicative 
of a positive safety culture” 



Conclusion 

• Remember the basics and use good judgment. 

• Don’t lie! 

• Voluntary Reporting Programs are valuable 
tools for the industry, your company, and 
YOU! 
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